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MISSION STATEMENT

The South Coast AQMD believes all residents
have a right to live and work in an environment of clean air
and is committed to undertaking all necessary steps to protect public health from
air pollution with sensitivity to the impacts of its actions on the community and businesses.
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October 19, 2007

Chairman, Governing Board and Citizens
Of the South Coast Air Quality Management District

State law requires that local governments publighimsix months of the close of each fiscal
year a complete set of audited financial statememsented in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and auditegiccordance with generally accepted
auditing standards by a firm of licensed certifpedblic accountants. This report is published to
fulfill that requirement for the fiscal year endéahe 30, 2007.

This report consists of management’s representtoncerning the finances of the South Coast
Air Quality Management District (AQMD), Diamond Ba&alifornia. Management assumes full
responsibility for the completeness and reliabitifyall of the information presented in this
report, based upon a comprehensive framework efriat control that it has established for this
purpose. Because the cost of internal control Ishmot exceed anticipated benefits, the
objective is to provide reasonable, rather thamwlalbs, assurance that the financial statements
are free of any material misstatements. As managgmwe assert that, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, this financial report is coetg and reliable in all material respects.

The AQMD’s financial statements have been audite@iompson, Cobb, Bazilio & Associates,
Certified Public Accountants. The goal of the ipeledent audit is to provide reasonable
assurance that the financial statements of the AQdAEhe fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 are
free of material misstatements. The independethit@s concluded, based upon the audit, that
there was a reasonable basis for rendering an lmegdiéclean) opinion that the AQMD

financial statements for the fiscal year ended BiN&007 are fairly presented in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted i lthnited States. The independent auditor’s
report is located at the front of the financialtgecof this report.

The independent audit of the financial statemehtese@AQMD was part of a broader, federally
mandated “Single Audit” designed to meet the gpeeeds of Federal grantor agencies. The
standards governing Single Audit engagements redu& independent auditor to report not only
on the fair presentation of the financial statersagtit also on the audited government’s internal
controls and compliance with legal requirementshwpecial emphasis on internal controls and
legal requirements involving the administratiorFefderal awards. These reports are available in
the AQMD'’s separately issued Single Audit Report.



Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) immeelia follows the independent auditor’'s
report and provides a narrative introduction, oiesy and analysis of the basic financial
statements. MD&A complements this letter of traiahand should be read in conjunction
with it.

Profile of the South Coast Air Quality Management District

The South Coast Air Quality Management Districtdoegperation on February 1, 1977 as a
regional governmental agency established by th#a@aih Legislature pursuant to the Lewis
Air Quality Management Act. The AQMD encompasdesfaOrange County and parts of Los
Angeles, San Bernardino and Riverside Countiesesgmting over 16 million residents. It
succeeded the Southern California Air Pollution @arDistrict and its predecessor four county
air pollution control districts, of which the Lomngeles County Air Pollution Control District
was the oldest in the nation, having been formelbui/ .
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The AQMD Governing Board is composed of 12 membacduding four members appointed
by the Boards of Supervisors of the four countie8@MD'’s jurisdiction, five members
appointed by cities in the AQMD’s jurisdiction atidee members appointed by the Governor,
the Speaker of the State Assembly and the Ruleritbee of the State Senate, respectively.
The members appointed by the various Boards of ISigoes and cities consist of one member
of the Board of Supervisors of Los Angeles, Oramyjeerside, and San Bernardino Counties,
respectively, and a mayor or member of the cityncdwof a city within Orange, Riverside and
San Bernardino Counties. Los Angeles County cltege two representatives, one each from
the western and eastern portions of the countgh Baard member serves a four year term.
The Board appoints the agency’s Executive Officet Bistrict Counsel. The Executive Officer
in turn appoints the heads of the various agenpardiments.




Southern California has the most serious air quphioblem in the country. A combination of
poor atmospheric ventilation, a capping temperatwersion, bordering mountains and sunny
days act to enhance smog formation and effectivaly pollutants in the Basin. The AQMD is
responsible for monitoring air pollution within tBasin and for developing and administering
programs to reduce air pollution levels below tkalth-based standards established by the state
and federal governments.

The AQMD provides a full range of air pollution d¢owl activities, including permitting, site
inspection, air quality attainment planning, rulakamg, air quality monitoring and technology
advancement. Government Accounting Standards Ba@tément No. 14 requires that certain
separate but related component units be includdédthe AQMD for reporting purposes. This
report includes the South Coast Air Quality Managetiistrict Building Corporation
(Corporation) as a discretely presented componaht his is presented in a separate column
in the basic financial statements to distinguighfthancial position and operations of the
AQMD from its component unit. The AQMD may impasewill on the component unit,
including the ability to appoint, hire, reassigndismiss management. There are also financial
benefit/burden relationships between the AQMD dredGorporation. For additional
information, see Note 1 to the financial statements

The annual budget serves as the foundation foA@MD’s financial planning and control. The
Governing Board is required to adopt an annual buldg July 1 of each fiscal year. The
AQMD'’s annual appropriated budgets are adopteth®iGeneral Fund. Budgets are adopted
on a budgetary basis that includes encumbrancespenditures. All annual appropriations
lapse at fiscal year end to the extent they havdeen expended or encumbered. Amendments
to increase the budget must be approved by ther@GiogeBoard. Budgets for special revenue
funds are not adopted due to the narrow focus (abvgechnology demonstration
projects/emission reduction projects) and limitésl of many of these special revenues.
Expenditures from the special revenue funds argdario contractual obligations that require
Governing Board approval. All work to account &d track special fund projects is included
within the General Fund budget.

The AQMD maintains budgetary controls through mtmature authority and automated budget
checking. The objective of these controls is teusa compliance with the annual appropriated
budget approved by the Governing Board. The AQMdntains an encumbrance accounting
system of purchase orders and contracts at theléwetias a means of accomplishing budgetary
control. Open encumbrances are reported as avadieer of fund balance at the end of the fiscal
year. Purchase orders and contracts are revieweasure that funds are available and that
requests are properly authorized prior to beingastd or executed.

The accounting principles applied in developingdetdry expenditures data differ from the
amount reported on the financial statements inaromty with generally accepted accounting
principles. Reconciliation of the differences iegented in the Required Supplementary
Information section of this report.

As reflected in the statements and schedules irdludthe financial section of this report, the
AQMD continues to meet its responsibility for souimncial management.



Factors Affecting Financial Condition

The AQMD is a fee-supported agency and does netwesales or property tax support.
Approximately 66% of its funding is derived fronefepaid by stationary sources that emit air
pollution; 18% from auto registration fees collettyy the Department of Motor Vehicles and
distributed to air districts throughout the statesupport of motor vehicle emission reduction
programs; 10% from federal and state grants andesuions; and the remainder from general
revenues such as penalties/settlements, leaseuraed interest earnings.

To meet its program commitments, despite increaselload complexity, the AQMD

continues to streamline many of its operationsycady the cost of its programs. Compared to

the 1991-92 fiscal year, 2006-07 reflects staffengels that are 30% (350 FTES) below 1991-92
levels and expenditures, when adjusted for inflatibat are 36% less than the 1991-92 period.

This year’s revenues and expenditures representdigniificant expenditure savings as a result
of higher employee vacancy rates, deferred contradtcapital equipment expenditures, and
debt reduction. Revenues for fiscal year 2007 eded estimates due to several significant one-
time penalty settlements totaling $9.4 million. Mhhe AQMD does not recover its activity
costs fully from fees, support in the form of statdvention, federal grants, and general
revenues offset much of the shortfall.

Because AQMD fee rate increases have not kept tipprogram costs, the Governing Board
adopted in June 2006 a cost recovery plan whiateases permit and compliance fees by a total
of 30% phased-in over three years at 10% annualhese increases, along with debt and
retirement cost reductions using one-time penatitésnents, have brought AQMD’s budgeted
program expenditures in balance with its revenues.

Long-term Financial Planning

Unreserved fund balance in the General Fund (2809 tdtal General Fund revenues) is above
the policy guidelines set by the Board for budgetard planning purposes (i.e., to maintain an
unreserved fund balance at 15% of General Fundhu@#. Much of the balance over the policy
guidelines is due to the previously noted one-foeealty/settlements reached in fiscal year 2007
with air pollution violators which resulted in pétias of approximately $9.7 million over
revenue estimates. To address long-term program tb@ AQMD in December 2006, using
one-time penalty/settlement money, took the follayctions totaling $29.1 million: (1) made a
$10 million prepayment to the San Bernardino Colimployees’ Retirement Association
reducing AQMD’s Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liabylif{UAAL) and lowering its long-term
retirement cost; and (2) executed a Guaranteedtment Contract (GIC) and Escrow
Agreement to economically defease a portion ofutsent debt service, (Pension Obligation
Bonds) in the amount of $19.1 million. As partloé agreement, $3 million will be withdrawn
annually beginning July 2007 for the next sevenrgjeaith approximately $2 million remaining
from the GIC available in the eighth year for pipat and interest reduction. This defeasance
provides for budget savings during the eight yesairgol between 2007 and 2014. Beginning in
2015, AQMD'’s debt service on its Installment Sakv&ue Bonds (associated with its
Headquarters building) will be retired, resultimgain approximate $6 million annual savings.



Relevant Financial Policies

Cash Management

The County of Los Angeles provides treasury manageservices to the AQMD. Cash
resources of the individual AQMD funds are invesdsgart of Los Angeles County’s Pooled
Surplus Investment Portfolio and Special Purposedtments. Investments are consistent with
AQMD adopted investment policy, with the majoritiythe maturities under one year. The
investment policy authorizes investments in Unigates treasury bills, bonds and notes,
obligations issued by agencies of the United Statmgrnment, bankers acceptances,
commercial paper, medium term notes, certificateteposit, and the State’s Local Agency
Investment Fund. The AQMD’s portfolio at June 2007 is $338,900,038.

The AQMD Governing Board annually reviews and appsoits investment policy and the
appointment of its treasurer. Monthly investmamarts are submitted by the Chief Financial
Officer to the Governing Board detailing investmaativities and portfolio balances. Quarterly
reports are submitted to the Governing Board, ltmaest Oversight Committee and auditor.
The primary objective of the AQMD’s investment glis to ensure money in the Treasury not
required for the immediate needs of AQMD is prutleimvested to preserve principal and
provide necessary liquidity, while earning a maiketrage rate of return.

Risk Management

AQMD manages its risks of property and liabilitg$ées through a combination of commercial
insurance and self-insurance programs. Commeangafance coverages are secured with
assistance from a team of experienced brokers tinenPublic Entity Division of Alliant
Insurance Services. AQMD maintains All Risk Prapeoverage with replacement cost
valuation for insurable values of approximately @h8illion and Difference in Conditions
coverage (earthquake and flood) with $25 milliotinmts.

AQMD has been self-insured since June 1, 1986 twkears' compensation, general liability,
and automobile liability claims. AQMD utilizes tiservices of ACME Administrators, a state-
certified third-party claims administrator (TPA), process the AQMD’s workers’ compensation
claims, with a dedicated claims examiner. Totiility, employment and automobile liability
claims are handled by Risk Management, Districtrideliand AQMD selected legal defense
firms. Due to the unpredictability of payments awhards on workers' compensation claims and
judgments in tort liability lawsuits, AQMD also nmhains excess liability coverage over self-
insured retentions for individual workers' compeiwgaclaims in excess of $750,000,
employment liability claims in excess of $100,00@ general liability claims in excess of
$1,000,000. Designations in the fund balance ¢gd@2000 for self-insurance and $80,000 for
unemployment claims are maintained.

Loss control activities are managed by AQMD's Risknagement staff. Staff performs loss
prevention inspections, risk identification, losgmbysis and employee safety training to
minimize potential human and property losses, atabdéish compliance with Cal/OSHA
regulations.
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Pension Benefits

The AQMD provides its full-time employee’s retiremie@nd disability benefits, annual cost of
living adjustments and death benefits to membedstlagir beneficiaries through two multi-
employer defined benefit pension plans; the Sam@dino County Employees’ Retirement
Association (SBCERA) and the Los Angeles County Byges’ Retirement Association
(LACERA). The AQMD makes contributions to the pddmsed on amounts determined by each
retirement plan actuary. The AQMD does not havetgamployees and does not provide post-
employment health care benefits to its SBCERAe&etr In June 2004, the AQMD issued $47
million in taxable pension obligation bonds to retihe Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability
(UAAL) due to SBCERA realizing a 5.61% reductiontsm FY 2004-05 retirement rates. As
noted earlier, in December 2006 the AQMD prepagidrion ($10 million) of its new UAAL
reducing its current retirement contributions b2 of annual payroll.

Major Initiatives

To continue our progress toward meeting federalsat health standards, the AQMD has
implemented several innovative programs in receatysuch as market-based incentives
(RECLAIM), permit streamlining, source educationsimess assistance, and technology
advancement.

During the next year and beyond, the AQMD will agoae to develop control measures to
reduce smog-forming and toxic air pollutants; paradederal waiver allowing for the continued
implementation of all of its fleet rules; implemehe 2007 AQMP; MATES llI; expand its
Environmental Justice programs; and pursue itslaiye goals.

During the past 12 months, AQMD actively pursuesglftiilowing programs.

Goods Movement & Air Quality Issues

AQMD sponsored two special meetings to hear thdiggalzoncerns about air pollution at the
Ports of Long Beach and Los Angeles on NovemBéard & of 2006. The meetings took
place as the ports considered adopting and implengetme San Pedro Bay Ports Clean Air
Action Plan. The aggregated smog-forming and tdiesel emissions from the ships, trains,
trucks and equipment at the Ports of Long BeachLasdAngeles represent the largest single
fixed source of air pollution in the Los AngelessBa Collectively, sources at the port are
responsible for more than 100 tons per day of srand-particulate-forming nitrogen oxides —
more than the daily emissions from all 6 milliouplcars in the region. Ships alone are
responsible for 50 tons per day of smog-formingogien oxides, and their emissions are
expected to nearly triple by 2020 due to increasiade traffic.

Sources operating in the ports area also contribegiely one-quarter of all diesel particulate
matter emissions in the region. Diesel emissioasesponsible for about 70 percent of the total
cancer risk from air pollution. According to thalornia Air Resources Board, statewide air
pollution from goods movement, including the poitsiesponsible for an estimated 2,500
premature deaths each year.
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In November 2006 the Board adopted a resolutionneitiing a total of $36 million over five
years — $7.2 million per year — for a truck fleeidarnization program designed to help clean up
heavy-duty diesel trucks servicing the ports ate@aaddition, AQMD earlier this year approved
$6 million for the truck fleet modernization progras well as $6 million for a liquefied natural
gas (LNG) port truck program. AQMD is working withe Ports of Long Beach and Los
Angeles to implement the LNG truck project.

Air Quality Management Plan

The AQMD has released its road map for achievirng aed more stringent federal clean air
standards including dozens of aggressive pollutantrol measures on sources from consumer
products to ocean-going ships. The draft 2007Aiality Management Plan (AQMP) lays out a
detailed strategy for meeting the federal fineipatate PM2.5 standard by 2015 and the federal
8-hour ozone standard by 2021.

AQMD’s AQMP uses complex computer models to pretlietamount of emissions reductions
needed to achieve federal standards, factoringigtieg pollution control programs and
projected growth. The plan shows that emissiorsradg-forming nitrogen oxides and volatile
organic compounds will have to be cut beyond tlggirements in existing programs by an
additional 50 percent by 2020 to meet the 8-hoonezstandard.

Since most air pollution is generated by so-caftetbile sources — including everything from
cars and trucks to ships, trains and planes — rofittte plan focuses on proposed measures to
reduce mobile source emissions through tougherseonistandards for both new and existing
vehicles; dramatically accelerated turnover of taxgsfleets and incentive programs to help fund
the replacement of aging, dirty diesel equipmentaddition to mobile source controls,
significant reformulation of consumer products aodtinued emission reductions from
businesses and industry will be needed to reaan@e goals.

Although AQMD has the overall responsibility forafling the plan, the California Air
Resources Board and the U.S. Environmental Proteétgency have most of the authority over
existing emissions. The Southern California Assamieof Governments is responsible for
developing the plan’s transportation control measuin 2014, AQMD’s authority will cover

only 11 percent of all nitrogen oxide (NOx) emiss&p24 percent of volatile organic compounds
(VOCs) and 24 percent of sulfur oxides (SOx).

Technology Advancement

In October 2006 AQMD unveiled a groundbreaking res&n-emission fuel cell and low-
emission micro turbine project that is reducing siins and energy costs at TST Inc.’s
aluminum foundry in Fontana.

This is the first use of a fuel cell at a largeusttial manufacturing facility in Southern
California and illustrates to Southern Califormaustrial companies that there are practical,
near-zero emission alternatives to burning fossld for generating electricity on-site.
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Fuel cells convert hydrogen-based fuels includiagiral gas into electricity without combustion
or moving parts. The primary by-products of fudlare water and heat, meaning they are
clean and efficient without burning fossil fueBirst developed to power spacecratft, fuel cells
now are being demonstrated in a wide range of eqpdins from passenger cars, trucks and
buses to commercial buildings and homes.

The fuel cell and micro turbine combination at TI&E. will reduce the amount of utility-
supplied power used by the facility by about 6Qcpat, which saves money and lowers demand
on the power grid. Micro turbines at the faciliitl function as an additional source of
electricity.

In February 2007 the Board took another step towsdjoal of establishing a diesel-free school
bus fleet in the region by awarding $3.9 milliorhiep several school districts install natural gas
fueling stations and purchase natural gas-powensdsh

In addition to reducing smog-forming and toxic esiogs, compressed natural gas (CNG)
powered buses can save fuel costs for schoolasstrAt current prices, the cost of CNG is half
of the price of an equivalent amount of diesel.fuel

Since 2000, AQMD’s Board has been a national leadadopting policies and providing
incentives to replace dirty diesel school buseh waiternative fuel models. To date, AQMD has
approved $87 million to purchase 505 new schooébusincluding 419 CNG and 86 lower-
emission diesel models — as well as CNG fuelingastfucture and 2,553 particulate traps to
reduce emissions from diesel buses.

CNG school buses on average emit four times lesggorming nitrogen oxides and 10 times
less particulate matter than the diesel busesrdm@gce. In addition, CNG buses emit no diesel
soot, which is the source of about 70 percentldiapollution cancer risk in the region.

Mobile Sources

To speed up progress in achieving healthful aitityd@r the Southland’s 16.5 million residents,
in January 2007 South Coast Air Quality Managenmasirict Chairman William Burke
announced the 2007 Mobile Source Fair Share liwéidb secure greater local authority to
regulate mobile sources of air pollution.

Mobile sources, including everything from carscksiand SUVs to planes, trains and ships, are
responsible for more than 80 percent of the Sonthdasmog-forming emissions.

Major elements of the initiative include:

« Seeking a requirement that the California Air Reses Board (CARB) and the US
Environmental Protection Agency be legally obligbte adopt all feasible mobile source
emission control measures within their authorityneet air quality standards;

« Seeking clarification under the federal Clean Aot £fhat AQMD may adopt its own
rules to reduce mobile source emissions;

« Assisting the CARB in developing new mobile soundes. AQMD staff will prepare
complete proposed rule packages for CARB’s conataer;, and



« Creating a new Mobile Sources division at AQMD #otjzipate more actively in state
and federal mobile source rulemaking, and to oeedsyelopment of new AQMD
mobile source rules.

Reducing mobile source emissions is an urgentipyifar two reasons: first, a growing body of
scientific evidence demonstrates that health effetair pollution are worse than previously
suspected; and second, the Southland is requiréebieyal law to meet the federal standard for
PM2.5 in less than eight years. Attaining the PM2amdard will require cutting nitrogen oxide
emissions by an additional 40 percent, above agdrzecurrent control programs.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association ofllinged States and Canada (GFOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for ExcellemcEinancial Reporting to the South Coast
Air Quality Management District for its ComprehearesiAnnual Financial Report (CAFR) for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2006. The Certifich#schievement is a prestigious national award
recognizing conformance with the highest standtodpreparation of state and local
government financial reports. In order to be awdrd Certificate of Achievement, a
government unit must publish an easily readableediiciently organized Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report, whose contents conformragram standards. The Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report must satisfy both generatlgepted accounting principles and
applicable legal requirements. The Certificatéafievement is valid for a period of one year
only. We believe our current report continues &ehthe Certificate of Achievement program
requirements, and we are submitting it to GFOAdtedmine its eligibility for another
certificate.

The preparation of our comprehensive annual firdmeport was made possible by the
dedicated services of the accounting, financialywhand management staff of the Finance
Office. These members have our sincere appregi&diathe contribution made in the
preparation of this report.

Recognition is also given to the Governing Boardtieir leadership and support and to all
employees of the AQMD who continue to push techgwland improve operations to
accomplish AQMD’s mission of protecting public hiarom air pollution with sensitivity to
the impacts of its actions on the community andriasses.

Respectfully submitted,

Barry R. Wéllerstein, D.Env. Patrick H. Pearce ,FBG
Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Governing Board of
South Coast Air Quality Marnagemeni Disirict

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities,
the business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, and each major fund
of the South Coast Air Quality Management District (AQMD), as of and for the vear
ended June 30, 2007, which collectively comprise the AQMD’s basic financial
statements as listed in the accompanying table of contents. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the AQMD’"s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions
on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Governmeni Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obilain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatements. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion,

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, the discretely presented component unit, and each major fund of the
AQMD. as of June 30, 2007, and the respective changes in financial position and cash
flows of its proprietary funds for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Audiiing Standards, we have also issued a report dated
October 19, 2007 on our consideration of the AQMD’s internal control over linancial
reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants. That report 15 an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report
in considering the results of our audit.

The management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) and the required supplementary
information other than MD&A, as listed in the accompanying table of contents. are not a
required part of the basic financial statements, but are supplementary information



required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain
limited procedures that consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the
methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information.
However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements
that collectively comprise the AQMD’s basic financial statements. The other
supplementary information identified in the accompanying table of contents is presented
for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements of the AQMD. Such information have been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a
whole.

The information identified in the accompanying table of contents as the introductory and
statistical sections is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required
part of the basic financial statements of the AQMD. Such information has not been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the AQMD’s basic financial
statements and. accordingly, we express no opinion on them,

Torrance, Califormia
October 19, 2007

Fhampsan, Cobl, Bazilic & Asseciates, FC



SOUTH COAST AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2007

As management of the South Coast Air Quality Manssgg District (AQMD), we offer readers
of the AQMD’s financial statements this narratiweerview and analysis of the financial activities
of the AQMD for fiscal year ended June 30, 2007leaBe read it in conjunction with the
accompanying transmittal letter, the basic finanstatements, and the accompanying notes to
those financial statements.

A. Financial Highlights

* The assets of AQMD exceeded its liabilities atdlse of the most recent fiscal year by
$302.3 million (net assets). Of this amount, $8iBion (unrestricted net assets), may be
used to finance the AQMD’s day-to-day operations.

* The AQMD’s total net assets increased by $15.6ionilprimarily due to receipt of FY
2005-06 state grants for Carl Moyer SB 1107 prografY 2006-07.

* As of the close of the fiscal year, the AQMD’s goweental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $324.9 million, an increafs®9.7 million in comparison to the
prior year.

o Of the $324.9 million combined ending fund baland&t.2 million represents the fund
balance of the General Fund.

* Out of the total General Fund balance of $44.2iomilat the end of the fiscal year, $37.3
million represents the unreserved fund balance bichv $20.7 million represents
designated uses. The undesignated balance wa8 &iléon, or 14% of general fund
expenditures.

e« The AQMD'’s long term debt decreased by $7.2 millmam6.1% of the long term debt
outstanding.

« The AQMD made a $10 million prepayment on its Unfed Actuarial Accrued Liability
(UAAL) to San Bernardino County Employees’ Retirethéssociation and executed a
Guaranteed Investment Contract (GIC) and Escroweé&ment for $19.1 million to
defease a portion of its current debt service amside Obligation Bonds from one-time
penalty/settlement money.

B. Overview of the Financial Statements
This discussion and analysis is intended to sesvaraintroduction to the AQMD’s basic

financial statements. The AQMD’s basic financightements have three components:
1) Government-wide Financial Statements; 2) Fumamcial Statements; and 3) Notes to the



Basic Financial Statements. This report also a¢ostsupplementary information in addition
to the basic financial statements.

In general, the purpose of financial reporting asprovide the external parties that read
financial statements with information that will pghem make decisions or draw conclusions
about an entity. In order to address the needss ghany parties as reasonably possible, the
AQMD, in accordance with required reporting standapresents government-wide financial
statements and fund financial statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The focus of government-wide financial statemest®n the overall financial position and
activities of the AQMD. These financial statemeats constructed around the concept of a
primary government and its component unit, exclgdfiduciary funds. The financial
statements of the AQMD’s fiduciary funds are natlided in the government-wide financial
statements because these funds cannot be usednodithe AQMD'’s activities.

The government-wide financial statements are desligio provide readers with a broad
overview of the AQMD’s finances in a manner similarcommercial enterprises or a private
sector business. These financial statements iacthd Statement of Net Assets and the
Statement of Activities.

The Statement of Net Assets reports all assetsdreldiabilities owed by the AQMD using
the accrual basis of accounting which is similarthe accounting method used by most
private sector companies. The difference betwesseta and liabilities is reported as net
assets. Net assets may serve as a useful indafad@MD'’s financial position.

The Statement of Activities presents informatioowimg how AQMD’s net assets changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changesét assets are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occuegardless of the timing of related cash
flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reportddsirstatement for some items that will
only result in cash flows in future fiscal pericglsch as earned but unused vacation leave.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that isdut maintain control over resources that
have been segregated for specific activities oeaihjes. The AQMD, like other state and
local governments, uses fund accounting to ensutedamonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements. All of the funds o€ tAQMD can be divided into three
categories:

a. governmental funds
b. proprietary funds
c. fiduciary funds

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for es#lgnttee same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide ficial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmefuiald financial statements focus on
current sources and uses of spendable resources|las on balances of spendable resources
available at the end of the fiscal year. Non-friahassets such as land and building and
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long-term liabilities such as pension obligatiom@e payable or long term liabilities that will
not be paid with current assets are excluded. 8udohmation may be useful in evaluating a
government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narralwan that of the government-wide
financial statements, it is useful to compare tifermation presented for governmental funds
with similar information presented for governmentdtivities in the Government-wide
Financial Statements. Information from the Govesntal Funds Balance Sheet and the
Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expeesliand Changes in Fund Balances is
used to facilitate the comparison between govermahdunds and governmental activities.
The reconciliation between the Governmental Furalai®e Sheet and the Government-wide
Statement of Net Assets can be found under the Fumahcial Statements section. The
reconciliation of the total change in fund balanfesall governmental funds to the change in
net assets can also be found under that samersectio

The AQMD maintains 24 individual special revenueds in addition to the General Fund.
Seven of the special revenue funds are consideagal fiinds. The information for the major
special revenue funds is presented separatelyeiGtvernmental Fund Balance Sheet and in
the governmental fund Statement of Revenues, Exfpeas and Changes in Fund balances.
Data for the other 17 non-major special revenuel$uare combined into a single, aggregated
presentation. Individual fund data for each okthaon-major governmental funds is reported
in the Other Supplementary Information sectionhas teport.

The AQMD adopts an annual appropriated budget torGeneral Fund. A budgetary
comparison statement has been provided for the r@lefRend to demonstrate compliance
with this budget. This is presented in the RegquBepplementary Information section of this
report.

The Basic Governmental Fund Statements can be fonddr the Fund Financial Statements
section of this report.

Proprietary Funds

When the AQMD charges for Compressed Natural GasGCfuel, whether to outside
customers or within the AQMD, the transactions aeported in proprietary funds.
Proprietary funds are reported in the same way #ikatactivities are reported in the
government-wide financial statements only in moetad. A statement of cash flows, for
instance, is presented at the fund financial steténtevel for proprietary funds but no
equivalent statement is presented in the governmi® financial statements for either
governmental activities or business-type activities

The AQMD’s Proprietary Fund Financial Statements file CNG Fueling Station are
presented under the Fund Financial Statementsgecti

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resourcdd For the benefit of parties outside
AQMD. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the gownent-wide financial statements
because the resources of those funds are not lbleaitasupport the AQMD’s own programs.
The fund financial statements consist of a StatéraeRiduciary Net Assets and a Statement



of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets. The accouniseyl for fiduciary funds is much like that
used for proprietary funds.

The AQMD’s Fiduciary Fund Financial Statementstfoe Agency Funds, Retirement Benefit
Trust Fund and Guaranteed Investment Contract Tfustl are presented under the Fund
Financial Statements section.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements proadtbtional information that is essential to
the full understanding of the data provided in t@ernment-wide and fund financial
statements.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements atmbmpanying notes, this report also presents
Required Supplementary Information section conogrnihe General Fund's budgetary
comparison schedule and budgetary reconciliation.

Individual fund data for each of the non-major goweental funds is included in the Other
Supplementary Information section.

. Government-wide Financial Analysis

Our analyses focus on the net assets and changes assets of the AQMD’s governmental
and business-type activities.

The schedule below presents a condensed StaterhéetoAssets as of June 30, 2007
compared with the prior fiscal year.

Net Assets
(In Thousands)
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities DTAL
FY 2006-07 FY 2005-06 FY 2006-07 FY 2005-06 FY 2006-07 FY 2005-06
Current and other assets 864,631 $ 355,112 $ 126 $ 82 $ 364,757 $ 355,194
Prepaid pension assets 46,736 46,756 - - 86,73 46,756
Capital assets 50,569 51,908 226 313 50,795 2,22%
Total assets 461,936 453,776 352 395 462,288 454,171
Long-term liabilities outstanding 118,201 125,381 - - 118,201 125,381
Other liabilities 41,723 42,059 48 9 41,771 2,068
Total liabilities 159,924 167,440 48 9 159,972 167,449
Net Assets:
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 10,939 7,712 226 313 HL,16 8,025
Restricted for:
Pension assets 1,926 736 - - 1,926 736
Special projects/programs 280,755 253,868 - - 280,755 253,868
Unrestricted 8,392 24,020 78 73 8,470 24,093
Total net assets $ 302,012 $ 286,336 $ 304 $ 386 $ 302,316 $ 286,722




As noted earlier, net assets may serve over tinseuaseful indicator of the AQMD’s financial
position. At the close of the most recent fisoahly the AQMD’s assets exceeded liabilities
by $302.3 million.

The largest portion of the AQMD’s net assets (93&fresents resources that are subject to
external restriction on how they may be used. Téwenue in special revenue funds is
restricted to expenditures for specific purpos&pproximately 4% of the AQMD’s net assets
reflects its investment in capital assets used QM (e.g. land, buildings, equipment, and
vehicles) less any related debt used to acquirsetlassets that is still outstanding. The
AQMD uses these capital assets in carrying ounitsion of protecting public health while
being sensitive to the economic needs of localiassies. Consequently, these assets are not
available for future spending. Although the AQMDisvestment in its capital assets is
reported net of related debt, it should be noted the resources needed to repay this debt
must be provided from other sources since the aapgsets themselves cannot be used to
liquidate these liabilities.

The remaining portion of the AQMD’s net assets (3%o)inrestricted which may be used to
meet AQMD’s ongoing operations and obligations teddors. At the end of the current
fiscal year, the AQMD is able to report positivddmees in all three categories of net assets,
both for the District as a whole, as well as far separate governmental and business-type
activities. The same situation held true for therdiscal year.

The net assets for governmental activities incietdrse$15.6 million during the current fiscal
year. Most of the increase represents receipttaik ggrants from Carl Moyer SB 1107
program in FY 2006-07.

Program revenue increased by $9 million, largelg thuannual operating fees and a further
refinement of non-specific Mobile Source revenuat thupports Clean Air Act Activities.
General revenue decreased by $1.9 million, which loa attributed to the decrease in
Penalties & Settlements, offset by increases ierést and Other Revenues.

A condensed Changes in Net Assets schedule foffishal year ending June 30, 2007
compared with the prior fiscal year can be foundrenthe following page.



South Coast Air Qut Management District

Changes in Net Assets
(In Thousands)

Revenues:

Program Revenues:
Fees and charges — stationary sources
Fees and charges — mobile sources
Operating grants and subventions
Restricted special revenue sources
CNG fuel sales

General Revenues:
Grants and subventions — not restricted to spegifigrams
Penalties and settlements
Interest
Other revenues

Total revenues

Expenses:
Advance clean air technology
Ensure compliance with clean air rules
Customer service
Develop programs to achieve clean air
Develop rules to achieve clean air
Monitoring air quality
Permit review
Policy support
Special funds activities
Other expenses
Total expenses

Increase (decrease) in net assets, before transfers
Transfers

Increase (decrease) in net assets

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities TOTAL

FY 2006-07 FY 2005-06 FY 2006-07 FY 2005-06 FY 2006-07 FY 2005-06
%5,200 $ 68,792 $ $ - $ 75,200 $ 68,792
23,966 20,992 - 23,966 20,992
8,947 8,035 - 8,947 8,035
92,925 94,223 - 92,925 94,223
- - 143 123 143 123
2,962 2,963 - 2,962 2,963
13,211 16,074 - 13,211 16,074
3,571 2,887 - 3,571 2,887
1,237 930 - 1,237 930
222,019 214,896 143 123 222,162 215,019
7,068 5,809 - - 7,068 5,809
42,699 36,727 - - 42,699 36,727
8,688 11,593 - - 8,688 11,593
8,722 7,812 - - 8,722 7,812
7,351 8,046 - - 7,351 8,046
12,229 11,794 - - 12,229 11,794
24,509 23,192 - - 24,509 23,192
3,442 2,948 - - 3,442 2,948
62,831 64,309 - - 62,831 64,309
- - 225 202 225 202
177,539 172,230 225 202 177,764 172,432
44,480 42,666 (82) (79) 44,398 42,587
(28,804) 17 - a7) (28,804) -
$15,676 $ 42,683 $ (82) $ (96) $ 15,594 $ 42,587




Governmental Activities

The objective of the statement of activities igeport the full cost of providing government
services for that year. The format also permiésrdader to ascertain the extent to which each
function is either self-financing or draws from teneral funds of the government.

The Statement of Activities presents informatiorowimg how the AQMD’s net assets
changed during FY 2006-07. All changes in nettasse reported as soon as the underlying
event occurs regardless of the timing of the chshst

The Statement of Activities distinguishes governtakeractivities from business type
activities. Governmental activities of the AQMDearedominantly supported by fees, grants,
state subvention, penalties, and settlements. pdmalties and settlements are one-time
revenues which are over and above the regular vegetdirectly related to the programs. The
primary governmental activities of the AQMD are:dvance Clean Air Technology, Ensure
Compliance with Clean Air Rules, Customer Servideyelop Programs to Achieve Clean
Air, Develop Rules to Achieve Clean Air, Monitorirgr Quality, Permit Review, Policy
Support, and Special Funds activities.

There was a decrease in program revenues in theidiss Special Revenues Sources. The
program revenues in the Restricted Special ReveSmarces category are made up of
revenues from several special revenue funds. Woltp are explanations of the significant

revenue variances from Fiscal Year 2005-06 to Fisear 2006-07:

* Air Quality Improvement Fund in Fiscal Year 2006-07 revenue in this account
decreased by $16 million due to a change in thertig of the pass-though revenue
received. This fund is used to account for 30 pdrcd the vehicle registration fees
received by the SCAQMD under the provisions of Best 44243 and 44244 of the
California Health and Safety Code. The revenueivedeis disbursed to the local
governments in the south coast basin to be usddnib projects for the purpose of
reducing air pollution from motor vehicles.

* Mobile Source Air Pollution Reduction Fund in Fiscal Year 2006-07 revenue
increased by $0.98 million as result of an increaseterest earnings which can be
mainly attributed to higher cash balances in thelfarhis fund is used to account for 30
percent of the vehicle registration fees receivedhe SCAQMD under the provisions
of Sections 44243 and 44244 of the California Healtd Safety Code. The revenue
received is to be used to provide grants to furajlepts for the purpose of reducing air
pollution from motor vehicles in the south coassibaln addition, interest earnings
increased due to higher cash balances in the flordy avith an approximate average
increase of 1.3% in the rate of return from priecdl year to FY 2006-07.

e Air Quality Investment Fund in Fiscal Year 2006-07 revenue increased by $4.8
million as result of an increase in Rule 1121 Mitign Fee revenue. Rule 1121 requires
the manufacturers of water heaters to reduce NOgsemns. Manufacturers that could
not meet the requirement by January 2005 were nedjid pay a mitigation fee of $3
per unit sold within the South Coast District. Bndary 2006 the fee increased to $15.
As of January 2008, all manufacturers will be regghito sell water heaters that meet the
Rule 1121 NOx requirements. In addition, intereshings increased due to higher cash
balances in the fund along with an approximate Ori®ease in the rate of return.
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» Carl Moyer Fund was established to account for the money receivedh fthe
California Air Resources Board (CARB) to providendls, on an incentive basis, for the
incremental cost of cleaner-than-required engimesegjuipment. Revenue in this fund
increased by $24.0 million which was due to recgjvhe SB 1107 State Grant revenue
for Moyer funding years 7 (FY 04-05) and 8 (FY O&-0In addition, interest earnings
increased due to higher cash balances in the flordy avith an approximate average
increase of 1.3% in the rate of return from priecdl year to FY 2006-07.

* Rule 1309.1 Priority Reserve Fundn Fiscal Year 2006-07 revenue decreased by $13
million and can be attributed to one large fee 18.8 million that was received in Fiscal
Year 2005-06 from GE Energy for the purchase ofssman reduction credits (ERCs)
needed for a permit to construct an electrical gy facility in the South Coast
District. In Fiscal Year 2006-07, there were noigaition fees paid.

« BP ARCO Fund in Fiscal Year 2006-07 interest revenue increage$ich3 million due
to higher cash balances in the first six monthstha fiscal year, along with an
approximate average increase of 1.3% in the ratetafn from prior fiscal year to FY
2006-07.

Business-type Activities

The Business-type Activities section reports trahieas relating to the CNG fueling station.
The CNG fueling station expenditures are reportecaacash basis and are offset by sales.
The net assets of the business-type activitiesedsed by $82,000 from $386,000 to
$304,000. The decrease is primarily due to theatggtion of the Business-type Activities
capital assets and the increase in liabilities.
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SOUTH COAST AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT

EXPENSES BY ACTIVITY
Governmental Activities

FY 2006-

0

Special funds activities
35%

Policy support
204 Permit review
14%

Advance clean ¢

technology
4%

Ensure compliance wi

clean

24%

air rules

Monitoring air quality

™%

5%

5%

Develop rules to achie

clean air
4%

Customer service

Develop programs
achieve clean air

O Advance clean air technology
[ Customer service

l Develop rules to achieve clean
O Permit review

air

O Ensure compliance with clean air rules
O Develop programs to achieve clean air

O Monitoring air quality

O Palicy support

0O Special funds activities
Activity FY 06-07 FY 05-06 FY 04-05 | FY03-04 FY 02-03 FY 01-02

Advance clean air technology $ 7,067,928 5,808530$% 5011,874% 7,255854% 5933504% 4,509,988
Ensure compliance with cleanairy 42,699,514 36,727,246 37,666,189 38,536(722 33,44D,5033,0203627
Customer service 8,687,8112 11,592,984 10,534,066 190245 10,035,584 9,557,298
Develop programs to achieve cleg 8,721,814 7,811,791 7,106,183 7,910,f78 6,214,755
Develop rules to achieve clean air 7,350,795 8,046,17 8,130,305 7,915,443 6,563,362 6,618,p08
Monitoring air quality 12,229,45 11,794,2p7 11,590,43 11,883,521 10,032,043 9,889,413
Permit review 24,508,7 23,191,4p3 21,403)924 21808,2 18,937,964 20,714,836
Policy support 3,442,2 2,948,274 2,954,538 2,524,809 ,559P42 2,238,31p
Special funds activities 62,831,313 64,308,002 53479, 62,422,518 94,144,240 85,826,567

Total $177,539,228 $172,229,534 $ 163,922,276 $ 170,822,851 $ 187,860,037 $ 178,030,292
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SOUTH COAST AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT

REVENUES BY MAJOR SOURCE
Governmental Activities

FY 2006-0'

General revenues*
9%

Special revenues
42%

Grants and subvention

4%

Mobie

sources

11%

Stationary sources
34%

O Stationary sourceld Mobile sourcedd Grants and subventiols General revenuedd Special revenués

Source FY 06-07 FY 05-06 FY 04-05| FY03-04 FY 02-03 FY 01-02
Stationary sources $ 75,200,253 68,792,294 $ 64,925,373 $ 61,932,425 $ 62,835,710 $ 65,737,827
Mobile sources 23,966,240 20,991,833 14,716,869 10,787,342 10,245,290 10,272)434
Grants and subventions 8,946,833 8,035,387 8,100,573 9,679,283 7,434,9p4 10,434,812
General revenues* 20,980,257 22,853,273 25,178,600 23,479,047 16,732,092 16,429/959
Special revenues 92,925,386 94,223,384 87,747,227 60,731,099 81,194,075 118,891)866

Total HHIHHHREHTE  HHHEHHER IR P HHE SR

* General Revenues include Penalties/Settlemettsebt, and Grants and Subvention dollars thatcdnesstricted

to specific programs.
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The following schedule presents the cost of eaciMB@rogram as well as each program’s net
cost (total cost less revenues generated by thetes):

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Net (Expense) Revenue
(In Thousands)

FY 2006-07
Total Cost of Net Cost of Progran
Program Activities Activities

Advance clean air technology $ 7,068 $ 519
Ensure compliance with clean air rule 42,699 315
Customer service 8,688 53
Develop programs to achieve clean air 8,722 41
Develop rules to achieve clean air 7,351 51
Monitoring air quality 12,229 10
Permit review 24,509 (7,607)
Policy support 3,442 23
Special funds activities 62,831 30,094

Total $ 177,539 $ 23,499

The program activities are described as follows:

* Advance Clean Air Technology- Identify technologies from anywhere in the waottheht
may have application in reducing emissions from ileobnd stationary sources in the
AQMD’s jurisdiction.

* Ensure Compliance with Clean Air Rules— Perform inspections, source tests, emissions
audits and respond to and resolve public complamtensure compliance with AQMD
rules.

» Customer Service— Provide local government, business, and theipuwiath access and
input into the regulatory and policy processeshef AQMD. Assist cities and others with
AB 2766 projects. Interact with local, state aeddral agencies and others to share air
quality information, resolve jurisdictional questg) and implement joint programs.
Implement comprehensive public information, legislaand customer service programs.

» Develop Programs to Achieve Clean Air Develop a regional Air Quality Management
Plan (AQMP) to achieve federal and state ambiemquality standards and to meet all other
requirements of the federal and California CleanAdts.

» Develop Rules to Achieve Clean Air~ Develop emission reduction regulations for sulfur
dioxide, nitrogen dioxide, organic gases, parti®ilmatter, toxics, and other pollutants to
implement the regional AQMP, Tanner Air Toxics Rees (AB 1807), National Emission
Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAPS)d &revention of Significant
Deterioration (PSD) requirements.
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Monitoring Air Quality — Operate and maintain a network of air quality maniity sites for
ozone, nitrogen oxides, sulfur oxides, particulatatter, carbon monoxide and other
pollutants to obtain data regarding public exposarair contaminants.

Permit Review — Ensure timely processing of permits for new soutizsed on compliance
with New Source Review and other applicable lostdie and federal air quality rules and
regulations.

Policy Support — Provide support staff to the Governing Board, Boeothmittees, and
various ad hoc committees.

Special Funds Activities -Generate funding for long-term projects that redercéssions in
the South Coast Air Basin. Funding for speciadfaiactivities are recognized when received
and projects carried out may extend over multiigeal years.

. Financial Analysis of the AQMD’s Funds
As noted earlier, the AQMD uses fund accountingengure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds

The focus of AQMD’s governmental funds is to praviciformation on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of spendable resourcesh Bfmrmation is useful in assessing the
AQMD’s financing requirements. In particular, useeved fund balance may serve as a
useful measure of a government’s net resourcesabl@aior spending at the end of the fiscal
year.

As of the end of the fiscal year, the AQMD’s goveental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of $324.9 million, an increase of7$@illion in comparison with the prior
year. Approximately 86% of these fund balances8Q$2 million) constitutes the portion
pertaining to special revenue funds. Expenditweder these funds are restricted for
specific purposes. The long-term contractual caments related to these special fund
programs, such as replacement of diesel-fueledd$tiuses, involve multiple-year spending.

* The General Fundis the operating fund of the AQMD. At the endfué fiscal year, the
total fund balance of the General Fund was $441Romi The unreserved fund balance
was $37.3 million; designations were $20.7 millem47%. These designated amounts
represent the AQMD'’s intended use of the financgsources in future periods. Its
components are presented under Notes to the Bamodtal Statements. One measure
of the General Fund’s liquidity is the comparisdnboth unreserved fund balance and
total fund balance to total expenditures. The semeed fund balance (designated and
undesignated combined) represents 31% of total i@eRend expenditures, while total
fund balance represents 37% of the total Generat Fexpenditures. In the General
Fund, the unreserved fund balance may serve agfal useasure of the AQMD’s net
resources available for spending at the end ofiskal year.
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In a continued effort to more fully recover thestof the AQMD programs, in FY 2006-
07 permit processing fees, annual operating andsom fees were increased by 10%. In
addition, all other stationary source fees weregased by 3.65%. Overall, the FY 2006-
07 adopted budget represented a $14.0 million ¢aB.iBcrease over the FY 2005-06
adopted budget. The FY 2006-07 adopted budgetdedia 4% salary savings; which
represents 33 unfilled positions; and an increasepproximately $1.3 million in
services, supplies and equipment budget. The adidptdget relied on $2,014,607 from
Undesignated Fund Balance to balance the budged. lfdinigetary basis, actual FY 2006-
07 General Fund revenues exceeded expenditureS. byrfilion.

Fund balance changes in other major governmeamalsfare noted below:

Air Quality Improvement Fund — The fund balance showed a slight decrease dilne to
expenses associated with the State mandated Hiexdi# of all local governments that
receive AB 2766 fee revenues.

Air Quality Investment Fund — The fund balance increased due to an increase lm Ru
1121 Mitigation Fee Revenue. Rule 1121 requiresufamurers of water heaters to
reduce NOx emissions. Manufacturers that couldmeet the requirement by January
2005 were required to pay a mitigation fee of $8 gt sold within the South Coast
District. In January 2006 the mitigation fee in@ed to $15 per unit sold.

Mobile Sources Air Pollution Reduction Fund— The fund balance increased compared
with the prior year due to an increase in reveriRevenue exceeded expenditures
because many of the contracts executed in thisadpevenue fund are multi-year and
the projects are often long-term and expendituaasvary significantly from year to year.

Clean Fuels Program Fund- The fund balance increased compared with tree paar
due to revenues exceeding expenditures in Fiscat ¥806-07. Many of the contracts
executed in this special revenue fund are multr-yea the projects are often long-term
and expenditures can vary significantly from yeayear.

Carl Moyer Program Fund — The fund balance increased due to an increasaues
received in Fiscal Year 2006-07. The revenue irsgrean be attributed to SB 1107 state
grant which was received at the end of the Fisedrfo offset a portion of the costs of
projects that were recently approved by the SCAQBtYerning Board. The projects are
to be completed within two years and expendituies \ary significantly from year to
year.

Rule 1309.1 Priority Reserve Fund- The fund balance showed an increase compared
with the prior year due to revenues exceeding edipgmes in Fiscal Year 2006-07. Many
of the contracts executed in this special revenne fare multi-year and the projects are
often long-term and expenditures can vary signifilgafrom year to year.

BP ARCO Fund — The fund balance showed a decrease comparedheitprior year.
This is due to expenditures and transfers outhierdiunds, exceeding revenues in Fiscal
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Year 2006-07. This fund was established in Fiscahry2004-05 with a one-time
settlement of $25 million which is to be used fovjpcts within the South Coast District.

Proprietary Funds

As noted earlier, the AQMD’s proprietary fund staents provide the same type of
information found in the government-wide financgthtements but in more detail. A
Statement of Cash Flows is included in the Progmnefund Statement.

. General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The Fiscal Year 2006-07 adopted budget comparethéoamended budget reflects an
increase in appropriations of $16.3 million. Theapes to the budget were the result of
Governing Board actions that allocated additionaiding after the budget was adopted.
Also, changes can be attributed to Governing Bagptoved transfers from other funds and
the use of a portion of Undesignated Fund Balaoc@rfogram needs that were unknown at
the time the budget was developed.

Additional funding was received and appropriate#iscal Year 2006-07 from the following
agencies:

EPA - $2,379,000 for the following programs: PhotocimhAssessment Monitoring
Stations (PAMS), PM 2.5 Monitoring, Exhaust Afteedtment Systems for
Locomotives, Special Particulate Air Monitoring Bram, and the National Air Toxics
Monitoring Program.

Department of Defense $998,000 to demonstrate feasibility to measure-level
pollutant concentrations.

Department of Homeland Security$959,000 for an enhanced particulate monitoring
program.

Cal-Trans- $388,000 for exhaust after-treatment systemofamotives.

The following amounts were transferred from otfuerds and designations to the General
Fund:

Clean Fuels Fund $700,000 was allocated for various Clean Fuebtgfam activities
such as the Multiple Air Toxics Exposure Study (M2 Ill), technical assistance,
expert consultations, public outreach, technicaifence sponsorship, and advance
technology vehicle leases.

BP ARCO Fud — $ 2,900,000 was allocated for following: Aiomnitoring in the port
area and |-710 freeway corridor, outreach for tB@72Air Quality Management Plan
(AQMP), and legal defense of railroad rules.
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Air Toxics "Hot Spots" Fund- $125,000 was transferred for the continuation of
privatization of portions of the Annual Emissions@®rting (AER) Program.

Air _Quality Investment Fund- $116,000 was transferred for the outreach and
administrative expenses of the Mow Down Air Pobuati Program 2007, which
exchanged gas-powered lawn mowers with electric enew

Rule 1309.1 Priority Reserve Furd$147,000 for exhaust after-treatment systems for
locomotives.

Rule 1173 Mitigation Fee Funrd$36,000 for refinery fence line monitoring.

Designation for Litigation and Enforcement $3,000,000 was allocated for outside
counsel to represent and advise both AQMD and AQH#aring Board on legal matters
related to environmental law.

Designation for Facility Refurbishing $1,340,000 for refurbishment projects at the
AQMD Diamond Bar Headquarters.

Designation for Permit Streamlining $865,000 to improve the efficiency of the permit
processing system.

The remaining $2,379,000 increase can be attdbtotéransfers from the Undesignated Fund
Balance for the following : the new Mobile SourceviBion, to organize and conduct the
2007 International Asthma Conference, locomotivena® sensing devices to measure
locomotive emissions, critical Carl Moyer prograreeds, to enhance chrome plating
enforcement, review of emission inventories andtha@sk assessments submitted by rail
yards per Rule 3503, and air monitoring in the poen and 1-710 freeway corridor.

For Fiscal Year 2006-07, actual revenues excetrgefinal budget by $9,132,000 or 8% and
expenditures savings were $12,411,000 or 9%.

The main reason that actual revenue exceededndlerévenue budget was due to several
large cash penalties/settlements that were natipated at the time the Fiscal Year 2006-07
budget was prepared which included penalty setthésnérom three refineries and a

manufacturer in the amount of $8.6M. In additifor, Fiscal Year 2006-07 interest earnings
were budgeted at 4% while the actual rate of retiveraged 5.2%, which along with higher
cash balances resulted in interest earnings exugdtie Fiscal Year 2006-07 projected

interest revenue.

The expenditure savings can be mainly attributeartly hiring critical vacant positions.
Salary savings were budgeted at 4% while the act@al 6%. Additionally, expenditure
savings were achieved by delaying budgeted contrark and building refurbishment
projects to the following year, the inability tor&itemporary employees with the required
skills needed for specific projects along with thexision not to hire temporary employees
for the port projects. The savings in the capitallay account were due to expenditures
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coming in lower than estimated with the purchadesome items deferred until Fiscal Year

2007-08. The savings in debt service can be atathio the closure of the Construction

Trust Fund, Series A Trust Fund and the Series BtTIFund. The residual fund balances
remaining in the closed Funds were transferrechéolhstallment Purchase Payment Trust
Fund in the Building Corporation and applied to thstallment payment due from the

SCAQMD as a one-time credit pursuant to the trgse@ment between the SCAQMD and
the Building Corporation.

. Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

The AQMD’s investment in capital assets is mostlyifs governmental activities. The book
value was $50.6 million (net of accumulated demttmn of $54.7 million) as of June 30,
2007. This investment in capital assets inclu@esl,| buildings, laboratory equipment, air
monitoring stations, and AQMD fleet vehicles. Dspation on capital assets is recognized
in the Government-wide financial statements.

Additional information on the capital assets canfdaend in the Notes to Basic Financial
Statements section.

Long-Term Debt

At the end of the current fiscal year, the AQMD laadbtal long-term debt outstanding of
$118.2 million, including the current portion of.$9million. Of this amount, $39.6 million
represents the Installment Sale Revenue Bondsddsy¢he AQMD Building Corporation
(Corporation) and the AQMD is required to make dsbtvice payments. This is in
accordance with the Installment Purchase Agreerheniveen the Corporation and the
AQMD. The amount of $64.2 million represents tle§lon Obligation Bonds. The 1995
series (outstanding balance of $19.3 million) aA@ illion outstanding balance issued as
of June 2004 retired the Unfunded Actuarial Accrugbility due to San Bernardino County
Employees Retirement Association as of June 304.20Qther long-term debt includes
general claims and workers’ compensation claimsaplkeyof $1.5 million and compensated
absences of $12.9 million.

Additional information on the AQMD’s long-term deban be found in Note VI under the
Notes to Basic Financial Statements section ofrépsrt.

. Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget and Rase

The FY 2007-08 expenditure budget decreases by TOftpared to the FY 2006-07
amended budget. The budget reflects a decredk® ®million in expenditures from the FY
2006-07 amended budget and a $6.4 million increase the FY 2006-07 Adopted Budget.
This FY 2007-08 budget request includes the fubtdacrease associated with its labor
agreements, which in the long term will reduce #uyency’s overall retirement cost by
shifting a portion of the cost of retirement to é®mployees and reducing retirement benefits
for new employees.
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In recent years, AQMD’s revenues have not kept paite program costs mainly due to
increases in retirement rates as the result of @dokses to the retirement system and court
decisions which have increased benefits to empkoweel retirees. Emission fees revenues
have been decreasing reflecting lower emissions @sult of additional emission controls
placed on the Basin’s emitters. In order to firatite FY 2007-08 Budget, the second year
of a 30% cost recovery fee increase phased in three years (10 percent annually) is
included to recover the program cost supporteddsynfi processing fees, annual operating
and emissions fees, and a 3.3% increase for adlr attationary source fees. Estimated
revenues for FY 2007-08 are $125.5 million whichings funding in balance with
expenditures.

Moreover, since FY 1991-92, the AQMD has reducedfisy and program costs despite
increased program requirements. The FY 2007-0&rekfure budget is $125.5 million and
includes 835 authorized positions. Compared talBY1-92, this reflects 30% less staffing.
Program costs, however, will exceed by $12.6 mmllfapproximately 11.2%) the FY 1991-
92 budget. Using inflation-adjusted dollars, hoerm\his year's budget request is 36% less
than the budget approved in FY 1991-92.

. Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a gaheverview of the AQMD’s finances for
readers of the financial statements. Questionseraing any of the information provided in
this report or requests for additional financidbmmation should be addressed to the Office
of the Chief Financial Officer, South Coast Air QtyaManagement District, 21865 Copley
Drive, Diamond Bar, CA 91765-4182.
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SOUTH COAST AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

Assets

Current Asset:
Cash and cash equivale
Investment
Interest receivab
Due from other governmental agen
Accounts receivable, r
Inventorie
Other asse
Total current ass

Noncurrent Asset
Prepaid pension ass
Capital asset
Lanc
Depreciable building and improveme
and equipment, r
Total capital ass
Total noncurrent ass

Total asse
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabili
Interest payab
Salaries and benefits paye
Unearned reven
Long term debt - due within one y
Total current liabiliti¢

Noncurrent Liabilities
Long term debt - due in more than one"
Total noncurrent liabiliti

Total liabilitie
Net Asset

Investment in capital assets, net of relateki
Restricted fo
Pension ass
Special projects/progra
Unrestricte
Total net ass

See accompanying notes to the basic financialretatts.

June 30, 2007

Componer
Primary Governm Unit
Business SCAQMD
Governmental type Building

Activities Activities Total Corporatior
316,998,85 $ 125,85( $ 317,124,700 $ 661,68:
20,000,00r - 20,000,00! -
4,650,15( - 4,650,15! 627,80°
19,633,62 - 19,633,62 -
3,288,88! - 3,288,88! -
59,64¢ - 59,64¢ -
- - - 334,29°
364,631,16 125,85( 364,757,01 1,623,78!
46,736,14 - 46,736,14 -
8,829,79: - 8,829,79: -
41,738,59 226,00¢ 41,964,60 -
50,568,38 226,00¢ 50,794,39 -
97,304,53. 226,00¢ 97,530,53 -
461,935,69 351,85¢ 462,287,55 1,623,78!
20,571,48 47,90: 20,619,38 10,06¢
2,026,50: - 2,026,50: 627,80°
3,890,88: - 3,890,88: -
15,233,96 - 15,233,96 -
9,126,21. - 9,126,21: -
50,849,04 47,90: 50,896,94. 637,87
109,075,05 - 109,075,05 -
109,075,05 - 109,075,05 -
159,924,09 47,90: 159,972,00 637,87
10,938,38 226,00¢ 11,164,39 -
1,926,14! - 1,926,14! -
280,754,86 - 280,754,86 -
8,392,20! 77,947 8,470,15: 985,91
302,011,59 $ 303,950 % 302,315,55 % 985,91
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Functions/ Programs
Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:

Advance clean air technology
Ensure compliance with clean air rules

Customer service

Develop programs to achieve clean air
Develop rules to achieve clean air

M onitoring air quality
Permit review

Policy support

Special funds activities

Total governmental activities

Business-type Activities:
CNG fueling station

Total business-type activities

Total primary government

Component Unit:

SCAQMD Building Corporation

Total component unit

Restricted Special Revenue Sources consist o§pahrough and/or one-time or limited duration fuing sources that are restricted

SOUTH COAST AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changed et Assets

Fees and Charges

Restricted

Program Fund, Clean Fuels Program Fund, Mobile SoauAir Pollution Reduction Fund and the Air Qualitpvestment Fund.

** General Revenue and excess Stattionary Sourced$are used to offset a portion of the Permit Presimg shortfall.

See accompanying notes to the basic financialretaits.

Operating Special SCAQMD

Stationary Mobile Grants and Revenues Governmental Business-Typ¢ Building

Expenses Sources Sources Subventions Sources * Activities ** Activities Total Corporation
$ 7,067,528 - $ 7,486,258% 100,000 $ - 8 518,730 $ - 518,730 $ -
42,699,519 38,424,491 1,804,986 2,784,996 - 314,954 - 314,954 -
8,687,842 6,082,263 2,478,701 180,149 - 53,271 - 53,271 -
8,721,816 4,672,680 3,891,631 198,431 - 40,926 - 40,926 -
7,350,795 5,859,929 1,326,156 216,034 - 51,324 - 51,324 -
12,229,451 1,158,504 6,160,716 4,920,376 - 10,145 - 10,145 -
24,508,757 16,354,783 - 546,846 - (7,607,128) - (7,607,128) -
3,442,207 2,647,604 817,792 - - 23,189 - 23,189 -
62,831,313 - - - 92,925,386 30,094,073 - 30,094,073 -
177,539,228 75,200,254 23,966,240 8,946,832 92,925,386 23,499,484 - 23,499,484 -
225,604 - - - - - (225,604) (225,604) -
225,604 - - - - - (225,604) (225,604) -
177,764,832% 75,200,254 $ 23,966,240 $ 8,946,832 $ 92,925,386 23,499,484 (225,604) 23,273,880 -

- $ - $ - % - 8 - 2,423,730

- $ - $ - $ - % - 2,423,730

General Revenues:

Grants and subventions - not restricted to sffie stationary source programs 2,962,418 - 2,962,418 -
Interest 3,570,915 - 3,570,915 9,979
Lease revenue 365,559 - 365,559 -
Penalties/ settlement 13,211,151 - 13,211,151 -
Subscriptions 22,315 - 22,315 -
Other 847,899 - 847,899 2,037,955
CNG fuel sales - 143,433 143,433 -
Total general revenues 20,980,257 143,433 21,123,690 2,047,934
Change in net assets before transfers and specnall axtraordinary item 44,479,741 (82,171) 44,397,570 (375,796)
Net transfer in (out) (18,803,906) - (18,803,906) -
Special and extraordinary item (10,000,000) - (10,000,000) -
Change in net assets 15,675,835 (82,171) 15,593,664 (375,796)
Net assets - July 1, 2006 286,335,764 386,124 286,721,888 1,361,709
Net assets - June 30, 2007 $ 302,011,599 $ 303,953 $ 302,315,552 % 985,913

for specific prograsuch as Carl Moyer
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Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Interest receivable
Due from other governmental agencies
Due from other funds
Accounts receivable, net
Inventories
Total assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Salaries and benefits payable
Due to other funds
Unearned revenue

Total liabilities

Fund Balances:
Reserved for encumbrances
Reserved for inventories
Unreserved:
General fund
Special revenue funds
Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balanc

$

SOUTH COAST AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
BALANCE SHEET — GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2007

Air Quality  Mobile Sources  Air Quality  Clean Fuels  Chfbyer Rule 1309.1 BP ARCO Other
Improvement  Air Pollution Investment Program Program iority Reserve Settlement Governmental

General Fund Reduction Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Projects F Funds Total
$ 56,307,317 1,676,196$%  46,022,934$ 28,984,030% 40,488,459% 73,573,689% 21,393,466% 16,588,456$ 31,964,075% 316,998,852
- - 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 - 20,000,000
816,287 43,172 743,377 389,290 720,677 884,942 299,286 327,265 425,860 4,650,156
6,922,738 3,450,740 2,588,055 - 2,346,220 4,325,868 - - - 19,633,621
3,451,568 - - - 2,762 562,322 - 141,586 35,600 4,193,838
996,393 - - 48,100 297,355 55,446 - - 1,891,595 3,288,889
59,646 - - - - - - - - 59,646
$ 68,554,178 5,170,108 $ 54,354,366 $ 29,421,420$% 48,855,473% 84,402,267$  21,692,752$% 22,057,307$ 34,317,130$ 368,825,002
$ 5,068,206 3,630,351% 2,455,459 % 1,128,516% 706,851 $ 5,394,739% 19,408 $ 247 $ 2,166,506 20,570,367
3,890,881 - - - - - - - - 3,890,881
181,068 - 61,690 143,729 487,214 2,332,512 - - 988,745 4,194,958
15,233,961 - - - - - - - - 15,233,961
24,374,206 3,630,351 2,517,149 1,272,245 1,194,065 7,727,251 19,408 247 3,155,245 43,890,167
6,832,427 - 21,580,300 5,747,307 17,379,002 65,134,352 1,189,238 1,487,404 17,294,502 136,644,532
59,646 - - - - - - - - 59,646
37,287,900 - - - - - - - - 37,287,900
- 1,539,757 30,256,917 22,401,868 30,282,406 11,540,664 20,484,106 20,569,656 13,867,383 150,942,757
44,179,973 1,539,757 51,837,217 28,149,175 47,661,408 76,675,016 21,673,344 22,057,060 31,161,885 324,934,835

68,554,17 ¢ 5170,10 ¢ 54,354,36 $ 29,421,42 $ 4885547 ¢ 84,40226 $ 2169275 $ 22,057,30 $ 34,317,13 ¢ 368,825,00

See accompanying notes to the basic financialretates.



SOUTH COAST AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SH EET
TO THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2007

Total fund balances — total governmental funds FBA835

Amounts reported for governmental activities in 8tatement of Net
Assets are different because:

Pension assets and related AQMD costs resultimg &@ntributions in
excess of the annual required contribution ardinancial resources
and therefore are not reported in the governméutals. 46,736,145

Capital assets used in governmental activitiesateurrent

financial resources and therefore are not repontéite Governmental

Funds Balance Sheet. These capital assets netwhalated depreciation

are reported in the Statement of Net Assets asat@sisets of AQMD

as a whole. 50,568,387

Interest payable on long-term debt does not requireent financial
resources. Therefore, interest payable is nottep@s a liability in
Governmental Funds Balance Sheet. (2,026,502)

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable & trrent period and
accordingly are not reported as fund liabilitiédl liabilities, both current
and long-term, are reported in the Statement ofAdeets.

Long-term debt (103,781,896)
General and auto liability (36,932)
Workers’ compensation (1,442,748)
Compensated absences (12,939,692)
Net assets of governmental activities $302,011,599

See accompanying notes to the basic financialretatts.
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SOUTH COAST AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Air Quality  Mobile Sources  Air Quality Clean Fuels Chtbyer Rule 1309.1 BP ARCO Other
Improvement  Air Pollution Investment Program Program ioly Reserve  Settlement Governmental
Revenues: General Fund Fund Reduction Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund cPRyjad Funds Total
Emission fees $ 21,771,498 - 8 -3 -3 -$ -$ - $ -$ - $ 21,771,497
Annual renewal fees 34,610,682 - - - - - - - - 34,610,682
Permit processing fees 16,120,262 - - - - - - - - 16,120,262
Clean fuels/mobile/stationary sources 22,820,434 - 14,818,526 - 7,664,458 22,278,648 - - - 67,582,066
Air Toxics "Hot Spots" 1,700,118 - - 8,785 - - - - 188,492 1,897,395
Transportation programs 1,145,806 - - - - - - - - 1,145,806
State subvention 4,021,970 - - - - - - - - 4,021,970
Federal grant 7,887,278 - - - - 12,443 - - 167,961 8,067,682
State grant - - - - 50,000 23,295,534 - - 1,995,000 25,340,534
Interest 3,570,915 - 2,427,784 1,394,323 2,400,716 3,252,821 1,106,950 1,292,290 1,598,250 17,044,049
Lease revenue 365,559 - - - - - - - - 365,559
Source test/analysis fees 528,653 - - - - - - - - 528,653
Hearing Board fees 469,041 - - - - - - - - 469,041
Penalties/settlements 13,211,151 - - - - 70,000 - - - 13,281,151
Subscriptions 22,315 - - - - - - - - 22,315
RECLAIM & executive order mitigation - - - 4,919,852 - - - - - 4,919,852
Other revenues 847,899 - - 2,755,410 (204,863) 562,322 - - 869,684 4,830,452
Total revenues 129,093,580 - 17,246,310 9,078,370 9,910,311 _ 49,471,768 1,106,950 1,292,290 4,819,387 222,018,966
Expenditures:
Current:
Salaries and employee benefits 83,488,915 - - - - - - - - 83,488,915
Insurance 1,265,932 - - - - - - - - 1,265,932
Rent 472,023 - - - - - - - - 472,023
Supplies 2,890,495 - - - - - - - - 2,890,495
Contract and special services 13,326,404 80,848 10,931,686 5,814,541 6,552,284 32,657,763 332,956 2,064,544 3,626,403 75,387,429
Maintenance 1,101,589 - - - - - - - - 1,101,589
Travel and auto 606,658 - - - - - - - - 606,658
Utilities 1,685,742 - - - - - - - - 1,685,742
Communications 489,779 - - - - - - - - 489,779
Uncollectible accounts 4,903 - - - - - - - - 4,903
Other expenditures 714,934 - 640,785 - 123,344 - - 2,309 3,850 1,485,222
Capital outlay 2,749,059 - - - - - - - - 2,749,059
Debt service: - -
Principal 7,870,000 - - - - - - - - 7,870,000
Interest 3,967,067 - - - - - - - - 3,967,067
Total expenditures 120,633,500 80,848 11,572,471 5,814,541 6,675,628 32,657,763 332,956 2,066,853 3,630,253 183,464,813
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures
before transfers 8,460,080 (80,848) 5,673,839 3,263,829 3,234,683 16,814,005 773,994 (774,563) 1,189,134 38,554,153
Other Financing Sources (uses):
Transfers in 3,607,758 - - - 40,000 170,000 - - 570,000 4,387,758
Transfers out (19,205,000) - - (116,000)  (235,000) - (146,591)  (3,198,414) (290,659)  (23,191,664)
Special and extraordinary item (10,000,000) - - - - - - - - (10,000,000)
Total other financing sources (uses) (25,597,242) - - (116,000) (195,000) 170,000 (146,591)  (3,198,414) 279,341 (28,803,906)
Net change in fund balance (17,137,162)  (80,848) 5,673,839 3,147,829 3,039,683 16,984,005 627,403 (3,972,977) 1,468,475 9,750,247
Fund balances, July 1, 2006 61,317,135 1,620,605 46,163,378 25,001,346 44,621,725 59,691,011 21,045,941 26,030,037 29,693,410 315,184,588
Fund balances, June 30, 2007 $ 44,179,993 1,539,757 $ 51,837,217$% 28,149,175% 47,661,408% 76,675,016%  21,673,344$ 22,057,060% 31,161,885% 324,934,835

See accompanying notes to the basic financialretatts.
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SOUTH COAST AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF
REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE S TO THE

GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Net change in fund balances before transfers aadapand extraordinary item —
total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in Btement of Activities are
different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expere$. However, in the
Government-wide Statement of Activities and Charigddet Assets, the cost of
those assets is allocated over their estimatedulusees and reported as
depreciation expense. This is the amount of dapi#lays recorded in the
current period.

Depreciation expense on capital assets is repartethe Government-wide
Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Asdati$,they do not require the
use of current financial resources. Therefore,re@ation expense is not
reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Amortization of prepaid pension asset is reportadthe Government-wide
Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Asdais$,they do not require the
use of current financial resources. Therefore, rimenl amount is not reported
in governmental funds.

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure & gbvernmental funds. For
AQMD as a whole, principal payments reduce theillisggs in the Government-

wide Statement of Net Assets and do not resulhiex@ense in the Statement of

Activities and Changes in Net Assets.

Accrued interest expense on long-term debt is tedan the Government-wide

Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Asdaisjt does not require the use
of current financial resources. Therefore, accrus@rest expense is not

reported as an expenditure in governmental fundse Tollowing amount
represents the change in accrued interest frormprtbeyear.

Long-term compensated absences and general fabiitkers’compensation
claims are reported in the Government-wide StatémikeActivities and Changes
in Net Assets, but they do not require the usewfent financial resources.
Therefore, they are not reported as expendituregouernmental funds. The
following amounts represent the change from therprear:

Compensated absences
General and auto liability/workers’ compensatitaims

Change in net assets before transfers and speathleatraordinary item of
governmental activities

See accompanying notes to the basic financialretatts.
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(20,049)
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SOUTH COAST AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2007

Business-type Activities
Enterprise Funds

CNG Fuelin
Statior
Func
Asset:
Current Asset:
Cash and cash equivale $ 125,85(
Inventories -
Total current ass 125,85(
Noncurrent Asset
Capital assets, net of accumulated depren 226,00t
Total noncurrent ass 226,00t
Total asse 351,85¢
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabil 47,90
Total liabilitie 47,90:
Net Asset
Invested in capital assets, net of related 226,00¢
Unrestrictec 77,94
Total net ass $ 303,95

See accompanying notes to the basic financialretates.
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SOUTH COAST AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Business-type Activities
Enterprise Fund

CNG Fuelin
Statior
Func
Revenue
Merchandise sal $ 143,43:
Total operating reven 143,43:
Expense:
Depreciatio 87,17
Other expens 138,43:
Total operating expen: 225,60«
Operating income (los (82,171
Total net assets, July 1, 2( 386,12:
Total net assets, June 30, 2( ¢ 303,95

See accompanying notes to the basic financialretaits.
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SOUTH COAST AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

Business-type Activities -
Enterprise Fund

CNG Fueling
Statior
Func
Cash Flows from Operating Activitie
Cash received from merchandise s $ 144,31!
Cash payment for goods and serv (99,930
Net cash provided by operating activi 44,38¢
Other financing sources-transfer -
Net cash provided by operating activities
other financing sour 44 38*
Beginning cash balance, July 1, 2 81,46¢
Ending cash balance, June 30, Z $ 125,85(
Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net C
Provided by Operating Activitie
Operating incom $ (82,171

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to nst

provided by operating activiti
Depreciatiol 87,17:
Decrease (increase) in accounts recei -
Decrease (increase) in invent -
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and adabéities 39,38t

Total adjustmen 126,55t
Net cash provided by operating activi $ 44,38¢

See accompanying notes to the basic financialretaits.
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SOUTH COAST AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS — FIDUCIARY FUNDS

June 30, 2007

Trust Fund
Retiremen Guarantee
Agency Benefit Trus  Investment Contre
Asset Fund: Func Trust Fun Total
Cash and cash equivale ¢ 29,30 $¢ 1,746,03 % - ¢ 1,746,03
Investmer - - 19,462,29 19,462,29
Interest receivak - 23,07¢ 79,08: 102,15
Due from other func - 1,12 - 1,12
Total ass $ 29,30( 1,770,23 19,541,38 21,311,61
Liabilities
Liabilities:
Accounts payable & accrued liabili ¢ 29,30( - - -
Total liabilitie ¢ 29,30( - - -
Net Assel
Net assets held in trust for retirement benefiG 1,770,23 19,541,38 21,311,61
Total net asst $ 1,77023 $ 19,541,38 $ 21,311,61

See accompanying notes to the basic financialretaits.
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SOUTH COAST AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS — FIDU CIARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Retiremen Guarantee
Benefit Trus Investment Contra
Func Trust Fun Total
Additions
Contribution $ 2,19 ¢ - ¢ 2,19¢
Interes 87,71¢ 441,38 529,091
Total additior 89,91: 441,38l 531,29:
Deductions
Total deductio - - -
Change in net as: 89,91: 441,38l 531,29:
Other financial source
Transfer in (ou - 19,100,00 19,100,00
Net assets held in trust for retirement benefitly, 1, 2001 1,680,32 - 1,680,32
Net assets held in trust for retirement benefitse B0, 20C $ 1,770,23 ¢ 19,541,38 ¢ 21,311,61

See accompanying notes to the basic financialretaits.
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SOUTH COAST AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2007

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A. Description of the Reporting Entity

The South Coast Air Quality Management District (A) was established pursuant to
the Lewis Air Quality Management Act on Februaryl®,77, commencing at Section
40400 of the Health and Safety Code of the StateCafifornia. The AQMD
encompasses all of Orange County and parts of Logeles, San Bernardino, and
Riverside Counties. The AQMD operates a networkinMmonitoring stations, analyzes
air quality data and establishes maximum emisswal$ for stationary, commercial, and
industrial facilities that are enforced through &@MD’s permit system.

The accompanying financial statements present ittendial activities of the AQMD
(primary government) and its discretely presentechmonent unit, South Coast Air
Quality Management District Building Corporationai@oration), an entity for which the
AQMD is considered to be financially accountableegally separate from the AQMD
and as a tax-exempt entity, the Corporation is megoin a separate column within the
government-wide financial statements.

The Corporation was incorporated as a nonprofip@@tion under the laws of the State
of California on September 21, 1978. The purpdsth@ Corporation is to finance the
acquisition and improvement of a building compledtquarters of the AQMD.
Although the Corporation is a legally separate tgntihe AQMD Governing Board
approves the appointment of the Corporation’s BadirDirectors. The AQMD has had
significant transactions with the Corporation floe tonstruction and improvement of the
AQMD’s headquarters facility. Hence, there is @aficial benefit/burden relationship
between the AQMD and the Corporation.

Separate financial statements for the Corporati@y ime obtained from the AQMD
Finance Office located at 21865 Copley Drive, Diach®&ar, California 91765.

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and FRancial Statement Presentation

The financial statements of the AQMD are prepanmedaccordance with Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). The Goveemtal Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting bfmulyestablishing governmental
accounting and financial reporting principles. TA@MD applies all applicable GASB
pronouncements (including all National Council oav&rnmental Accounting (NCGA)
statements and interpretations currently in effeBivate-sector standards of accounting
and financial reporting issued prior to Decembet 989, generally are followed in both
government-wide and proprietary fund financial esta¢nts to the extent that these
standards do not conflict with or contradict thédgmce of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board. Governments also have the opfidallowing subsequent private-
sector guidance for their business-type actividesl enterprise funds, subject to this
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SOUTH COAST AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2007

same limitation. The AQMD has elected not to falleubsequent private-sector
guidance.

The basic financial statements of the AQMD are coseg of the following:

 Government-wide financial statements
* Governmental fund financial statements
* Notes to the basic financial statements

Government-wide Financial Statements

The AQMD government-wide financial statements idel@ Statement of Net Assets and
Statement of Activities. These statements presemtmaries of governmental and
business-type activities for the AQMD as a whobe;leding fiduciary activities. The
primary government and component unit are presesépérately within the financial
statements with the focus on the primary government

Certain eliminations have been made as prescripgdASB Statement 34 in regards to
interfund activities, payables and receivables. eréhare no internal service fund
transactions; as a result, no eliminations wereenfadinternal balances.

These statements are presented on an economiaaesaneasurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all btAQMD’s assets and liabilities
including capital assets and long-term liabilitiase included in the accompanying
Statement of Net Assets. Under the accrual bdsisamunting, revenues are recognized
in the period in which they are earned and expeasesecognized in the period in which
the liability is incurred, regardless of the timiofyrelated cash flows.

Amounts paid to acquire capital assets are capatdlas assets in the government-wide
financial statements rather than reporting thenex@enditures. Proceeds of long-term
debt are also recorded in the government-wide @G@drstatements as a liability, rather

than as an other financing source. Amounts parédace long-term indebtedness of the
reporting government are reported as a reductidheofelated liability, rather than as an

expenditure.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degweshich the direct expenses of a
given functional activity are offset by program eeues directly related to the functional
activity. Direct expenses are those that are lgledentifiable with a specific functional
activity.

The types of transactions reported as program tesgare reported in three categories:
1) fees and charges including stationary source fieen permitted facilities and mobile
source fees from motor vehicle registrations; Zrapng grants and subventions that are
in support of air pollution program activities; aBj restricted special revenue sources
which include capital grants and contributions where mostly restricted. Program
expenditures are subtracted from program revenoegrésent the net cost of each

32



SOUTH COAST AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2007

functional activity. Interest income and other celéaneous items not properly included
among program revenues are reported as generalueyve

The AQMD’s functional activities are broken downarhe following nine categories:

» Advance clean air technology

» Ensure compliance with clean air rules
» Customer service

» Develop programs to achieve clean air
e Develop rules to achieve clean air

e Monitoring air quality

* Permit review

e Policy support, and

e Special funds activities

When both restricted and unrestricted resourcesaaaable for use, it is AQMD’s
policy to use restricted resources first within ttestricted activities, then use the
unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Fund financial statements for the primary governt'segovernmental, proprietary, and
fiduciary funds are presented after the governmedé financial statements.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund financial statements include #am=e Sheet and a Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Bal&wrcal major governmental funds
and non-major funds aggregated. A fund is conseiarajor if it is the primary operation
fund or meets both of the first two criteria:

a. Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expendsigsgpenses of that individual
governmental or enterprise fund are at least 10%hefcorresponding total for all
funds of that category or type; and

b. Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expend#fi@gsgenses of the individual
governmental fund or enterprise fund are at le#sbbthe corresponding total for all
governmental and enterprise funds combined.

c. The government has determined that a fund is imapotio the financial statement
user.

The AQMD has presented all major funds that mesehqualifications. These major
funds are the Air Quality Improvement Fund, Mobeurces Air Pollution Reduction
Fund, Air Quality Investment Fund, Clean Fuels Paog Fund, Carl Moyer Program
Fund, Rule 1309.1 Priority Reserve Fund and BP ASeftlement Projects Fund in
addition to the General Fund.
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SOUTH COAST AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2007

A reconciliation of the Fund Financial Statemerdstite Government-wide Financial
Statements is provided to explain the differencea eesult of the integrated approach of
GASB Statement No. 34 reporting.

All governmental funds are accounted for on a spgndr current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basscobunting. Using the current
financial resources measurement focus means thigt @nrent assets and current
liabilities are generally included in the balandeeets. The Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances presarrsases (revenues and other
financing sources) and decreases (expenditureotiied financing uses) in net current
assets. Under the modified accrual basis of adowyrrevenues are recognized in the
accounting period in which they become measurabie available to finance
expenditures of the current period. Revenues ansidered to be available when they
are collectible within the current period or sosoegh thereatfter to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, the AQMD consdevenues to be available if they
are collected generally within 90 days after yaad-@o be available to finance the
expenditures accrued for the reporting period. pin@ary revenue sources which have
been treated as susceptible to accrual by the AQKk&as follows: emissions flat fees,
permit fees, air toxics “Hot Spots” fees, and seutest/analysis fees from stationary
sources; clean fuels revenues from stationary ssuriederal and state grants under
grants and subventions and interest under gererahues. All other revenue items are
considered measurable and available only when casteceived by the AQMD.
Expenditures are recognized in the accounting geniavhich the related fund liability is
incurred, if measurable, except for debt servicpeexitures, as well as expenditures
related to compensated absences, which are reeagwizen payment is due.

Amounts expended to acquire capital assets areded@s capital outlay expenditures in

the year that resources were expended rather #wmding them as fund assets. The
proceeds of long-term debt are recorded as othanding sources rather than as fund
liability. Amounts paid to reduce long-term indethbess are reported as debt service
expenditures.

Proprietary Fund Statements

Proprietary Fund financial statements include ateBtant of Fund Net Assets, a
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes inNetnfissets, and a Statement of
Cash Flows. These funds are accounted for usm@dtbnomic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Acoggj all assets and liabilities (whether
current or noncurrent) are included on the Statéroémet Assets. The Statement of
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Asssenpincreases (revenues) and
decreases (expenses) in total net assets. Theueveare recognized in the period in
which they are earned and expenses are recogmzée period in which the liability is
incurred regardless of the timing of related casws.
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SOUTH COAST AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2007

Fiduciary Fund Statements

Fiduciary Fund financial statements include a $tet® of Fiduciary Net Assets. These
funds represent agency funds which are custodiabtare (assets equal liabilities) and
do not involve the recording of revenues and expems the measurement of results of
operations. The accrual basis of accounting id fmeAgency Funds.

. Fund Types and Major Funds

As noted eatrlier, the funds designated as majatduare determined in accordance with
GASB Statement 34.

The AQMD reports the following major governmentahds:

General Fund- This is the primary operating fund of the AQMBdais used to record
transactions relating to its general business ¢ipasa It is also used to account for all
revenues and expenditures that are not requirbd scounted for in another fund.

Special Revenue Funds These funds are used to record transactionscapfd to
specific revenue sources that are legally resttitbeexpenditures for specific purposes.
The following are the AQMD’s major special reverfuads:

» Air Quality Improvement Fund Used to account for 40% of the revenue recebsed
the AQMD from motor vehicle registration fees undee provisions of Sections
44243 and 44244 of the California Health and Safégde. This money is
distributed on a quarterly basis to cities and tiesrwithin the South Coast Air Basin
to implement programs to reduce air pollution fromator vehicles.

* Mobile Sources Air Pollution Reduction FundUsed to account for 30% of the
revenue received by the AQMD from the motor vehidgistration fees under the
provisions of Sections 44243 and 44244 of the Galid Health and Safety Code.
This money is used to provide grants to fund pisjéar the purpose of reducing air
pollution from motor vehicles within the South Cb&sr Basin. Total projects to
date amount to over $245 millieand over 8,175 tons of emissions reduced. This
special fund was established in FY 1991-92.

* Air Quality Investment Fund Is one of the compliance options available to
employers with 250 or more employees at a workslte are subject to Rule 2202.
This revenue is used to purchase emissions reagctedits to meet the required
target. To date, $40.2 million in projects havermawarded to purchase over 27,071
tons of emission reductions. During fiscal yead2(eight contracts were awarded in
the amount of $4.42 million.

RECLAIM AQIP - Established in fiscal year 2001 to separatelyoant for the
generation of NOx (Oxides of Nitrogen) credits tatisnary and mobile sources for
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use by certain small or new RECLAIM (Regional Cleain Incentives Market)
participants. AQIP stands for Air Quality Investm&rogram.

RECLAIM and Executive Order Mitigation Established in fiscal year 2001 to
account for mitigation fee payments made by povweregators in lieu of emission
offsets. Proceeds are used to generate RECLAIMIidgaCredits (RTCs) to offset
excess emissions.

Rule 1121 Mitigation Fee ProgramEstablished in fiscal year 2004 to issue program
announcements for projects under the Rule 1121ghtion Fee Program. Under
Rule 1121 — Control of Nitrogen Oxides (NOrom Residential Type, Natural Gas
Fired Water Heaters, emission mitigation fees apdlected from water heater
manufacturers to fund stationary and mobile sowrpession reduction projects
targeted at offsetting NOemissions from water heaters that do not curremibet
Rule 1121 emissions standards.

Clean Fuels Program FurdEstablished as a special revenue fund in figeat 2000

to account for contract activities and revenuethefClean Fuels Program. These are
activities associated with implementing clean fustigtionary and mobile sources
development and demonstration projects approvethéyGoverning Board. Since
1988, the Clean Fuel program has provided fund<Q@& projects totaling $139.7
million.

Carl Moyer Program Fune Established in fiscal year 1999 to account fciviies
related to the administering of state funds selleasor the replacement of diesel-
powered vehicles with cleaner-technology vehiclésias funded over 4,50@hicles
and 22 infrastructure/charging stations, totalir®$ $nillion. It provides incentive
funds for the replacement of diesel-fueled on- affdoad vehicles such as refuse
haulers, heavy duty trucks, transit and school fjusenstruction equipment, and
marine vessels.

Rule 1309.1 Priority Reserve FuncEstablished in fiscal year 2001 to account for
mitigation fees paid for Particulate MatterlO microns (PNb) credits. Due to the
state energy crisis, Rule 1309.1 was amended twatlew electric generating
facilities temporary access to AQMD’s Priority RegeAccount to offset their P}
emission increases provided that they meet speciiteria and pay appropriate
mitigation fees.

BP Arco Settlement Projects FurdEstablished in fiscal year 2005 to account fer th
$25 million civil penalties received in 2005 astpafrthe settlement with BP Arco for
air pollution violations.

Details of various non-major governmental funds @esented under the section “Other
Supplementary Information.”
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The AQMD reports the following major proprietarynfilr

Compressed Natural Gas (CNG) Fueling Station Fdristablished during fiscal
year 2002 to administer all activities, transactioand funding relating to the public
and the AQMD use of CNG fueling facilities at th&€WMD’s headquarters. The
fueling station will help accommodate the growingnber of alternative-fuel vehicle
fleets.

The AQMD also reports the following fund types:

Agency Funds Used to account for funds received and heldhigyAQMD as an
agent and then disbursed to other governmentalcaggebusinesses or persons. The
following are the AQMD’s agency funds:

SCAQMD Building Corporation Fund Used to account for funds required to be
deposited in a separate fund by the installmenthmase agreement between the
AQMD and the Corporation. Note VI provides for manformation regarding this
agreement.

General Purpose Fund Used to account for funds due to others that reot
accounted for in the other funds.

Retirement Benefit Trust FundJsed to account for funds contributed by the AQM
and interest earned on its principal for the futpegment of medical, dental and
burial costs of the AQMD employees, who are membéthe Los Angeles County
Employees Retirement Association, which operates @sst-sharing multi-employer
defined benefit plan. Note VIII contains more imf@ation about the AQMD’s
retirement plans.

Guaranteed Investment Contract Trust Fundsed to account for the $19.1 million
Guaranteed Investment Contract executed for theadahce of a portion of AQMD’s
debt service on Pension Obligation Bonds.

D. Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets or Equity

1.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The AQMD considers highly liquid investments with @riginal maturity of three
months or less when purchased to be cash equisalent

Investments

The AQMD'’s investments are reported at fair vakemg;ept for certain short-term
money market investments, which are carried at apeok cost.

Capital Assets and Depreciation

Land, equipment, buildings and improvements araeglat cost unless obtained
by donation in which case the assets are recortélseaappraised value at the
date of receipt. Capital Asset purchases withegahf at least $5,000 and with an
expected useful life of three years or more aréalaed.
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Repair and maintenance costs are charged to cuerg@Enditures as incurred.
Equipment disposed of or no longer required foekisting use is removed from

the records at actual or estimated cost.

Depreciation is charged as an expense against tmpexaand accumulated
depreciation is reported on the respective balamset. Property, plant, and
equipment of the AQMD are depreciated using thaighit-line method over the
following useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings and Improvements 15-30 years
Equipment 5-7 vyears

4. Inventories

Inventories consist principally of office, compytetleaning and laboratory
supplies. Inventories are valued at cost usinditkein/first out (FIFO) method.
Inventories of governmental funds are recordedxapemitures when consumed
rather than when purchased.

5. Compensated Absences

Regular full-time employees accumulate vacatiorefisick leave, compensatory
time, and other leave time. Certain restrictiomply with respect to the

accumulation of leave time and its payment at teatnon. All vacation, sick

leave, compensatory time, and other leave timeaeceued when incurred in the
government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary funckincial statements. A liability
for these amounts is reported in governmental fuordg if they have matured,

for example, as a result of employee resignatiahratirement.

6. Self-Insurance

The AQMD is self-insured for general, automobiladavorkers’ compensation
liabilities (See note VII).

7. Long-term Obligation

In the government-wide financial statements, armmppetary fund types in the

fund financial statements, long-term debt and oflbeg-term obligations are

reported as liabilities in the applicable governtakractivities, business-type

activities, or proprietary fund type statement ef assets. Bond premiums and
discounts, as well as issuance costs, are defan@dmortized over the life of the
bonds using the straight-line method. Bonds payadnle reported net of

applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuaoccsts are reported as
deferred charges and amortized over the term afelaged debt.
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In the fund financial statements, governmental fugygdes recognize bond
premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuarste,@uring the current period.
The face amount of debt issued is reported as ditiercing sources. Premiums
received on debt issuances are reported as oti@rcing uses. Issuance costs,
whether or not withheld from the actual debt proseeeceived, are reported as
debt service expenditures.

8. Reserves and Designations

Reserved for:

Portions of fund balances are reserved for futise and are, therefore, not
available for appropriation. Designation of unrgsd fund balances in the
general fund indicates the AQMD'’s tentative plams @tise of the financial
resources in future periods.

The following table shows reserved and unreservedd fbalances as of
June 30, 2007:

Major Other
General Governmental Governmental
Fund Funds Funds Total

Encumbrances $ 6,832,427 $ 112,517,603 $ 17,294,502 $ 136,644,532
Inventories 59,646 - - 59,646
Total reservecfundbalance 6,892,075 112,517,605 17,294,502 13€,704,17¢
Unreserved, designated for:
Self-insurance 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
Community Health Projects 6,000,000 - - 6,000,000
Permit Streamlining 1,473,125 - - 1,473,125
Equipment replacement 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
Facility refurbishing 943,642 - - 943,642
Budget stabilization 8,000,000 - - 8,000,000
Unemployment claims 80,000 - - 80,000
Enhanced
compliance activities 213,269 - - 213,269
Unreserved, undesignated 16,577,864 137,075,374 13,867,383 167,520,621
Total unreserved fund balances 37,287,900 137,075,374 13,867,383 188,230,657

Total fund balances

$44,179,973 $

249,592,977 $

31,161,885 $ 324,934,835
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E. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confoymiith generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimatels amsumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities andlaisce of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statemesmsl the reported amounts of revenues and
expenditures during the reporting period. Actuabults could differ from those
estimates.

F. Adoption of New GASB Pronouncements
During fiscal year 2005, AQMD adopted the GASB moncements 40 and 44:

GASB Statement 40, “Deposit and Investment Risk Dedosures”

This statement establishes and modifies disclogg@rements related to investment and
deposit risks. Accordingly, the note disclosurecash and investments has been revised
to conform to the provisions of GASB Statement A@.

GASB Statement 44, “Economic Condition Reporting: Te Statistical Section, an
amendment of NCGA Statement 1”

This statement amends portions of NCGA StatemeriGhyernment Accounting and
Financial Reporting Principles,” to improve understability and usefulness of the
information that state and local governments preasrsupplementary information in the
statistical section. AQMD elected to implement A& beginning fiscal year 2005.

GASB Statement 45, “Accounting and Financial Reportg by Employers for Post
Employment Benefits Other than Pensions”

This statement will require State and Local Governts to include in the financial
reports information quantifying the unfunded lidties associated with retiree health
benefits. The statement will become effective fmcal periods beginning after
December 15, 2006 for governments with annual neseof $100 million or more.
AQMD will implement GASB 45 in the next fiscal year

IIl. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

The following is a summary of the cash and cashivatgent balances for the primary
government (including fiduciary funds) and compdnamt at June 30, 2007.

Primary Component
Government Unit
Cash on hand $ 972,808 -
Cash in bank 56,101 $ 661,682

Cash equivalents in pooled investments 317,871,129 -
$ 318,900,038 $ 661,682
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DEPOSITS

At June 30, 2007, the carrying amount of the AQMb&nk deposits was $56,101 and the
bank balance was $81,500. The entire amount waseo by federal depository insurance.

At June 30, 2007, the carrying amount and banknicalaf the AQMD’s component unit
bank deposits was $661,682 of which $100,000 wasred by federal depository insurance.
The remaining $561,682 in excess of $100,000 whatewmlized as required by state law.

INVESTMENTS

At June 30, 2007 the carrying amount of AQMD’s casjuivalents held in Los Angeles
County’s Pooled Surplus Investment Fund and Sta@abfornia Local Agency Investment
Fund amounting to $317,871,129 is stated at falueva Investments in the amount of
$20,000,000 are reported at amortized cost whiphcagmates market value.

Changes in 1996 to the California Government Cadglire that a statement of investment
policy be transmitted annually to the oversight odttee and legislative body of a local

agency for consideration at a public meeting. fGalia Government Code Section 53607
requires that a local agency’s legislative bodyuatly renew its delegation of authority to its

treasurer to invest or to reinvest funds of thel@gency.

For the past 30 years, the County of Los Angelasphhavided treasury management services
to the AQMD. These services are limited to thecpssing of payroll and accounts payable
warrants and the investment of available cash bakn Annually, the Governing Board
reviews the treasury management options availabtee AQMD and renews its delegation
of authority to its appointed Treasurer to invastesinvest AQMD funds.

Available cash is invested in investments legallgveable under state law. Income from
such investments is allocated on the basis of geemaonthly cash balances to the respective
funds based on the source of funds invested.

In accordance with the State of California Governin€ode, the AQMD adopts an
investment policy annually that, among other thjregghorizes types and concentrations of
investments and maximum investment terms. Stanesinvestment policy authorize the
AQMD to invest in:

. U.S. Treasuries

. Federal agencies and U.S. government sponsoregests

. Los Angeles County Pooled Surplus Investment Plartfo

»  State of California Local Agency Investment Fund

»  State of California and local agency obligationset allowed as Special Purpose
Investments.

»  Shares of money market mutual funds — shall beéuinio ratings of AAA by two of
the three largest nationally recognized ratingisess
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Bankers acceptances — credit requirements shalli@imum of 2-F1 for Fitch or P-
1/Aaa for Moody’s Investors Service.

Negotiable certificates of deposit — shall be aimim of 2-F1 for Fitch or P-1/Aaa
for Moody’s Investors. The Los Angeles County #ad by Standard & Poor’'s
(S&P) and P-1 by Moody’s.

Commercial paper — short term rating of A-1 by S&metter and Moody'’s Investors
Service short term rating of P-1 or better. The Bmgeles County has A-1 by S&P
and P-1 by Moody’s.

Medium term maturity corporate securities — shallimited to a minimum of AA —
from S&P or Aa3 from Moody’s.

Mortgage securities or asset-backed securitiesalIsé rated AA or its equivalent or
better by a nationally recognized rating servicd msued by an issuer having A or
better rating by a nationally recognized rating/mer for its long-term debt.
Repurchase agreements — with maximum maturity of d@ys and must be
collateralized by the U.S. Treasury or Agenciesnwaitmarket value of 102%
Reverse purchase agreements — are not allowedtexsqqart of investments in the
County of Los Angeles Pooled Surplus Investmenttf®lay and the State of
California Local Agency Investment Fund

Variable and floating rate securities

Derivative securities — not allowed as Special Bsepinvestments

The following table summarizes AQMD'’s cash, castiegjents and investments at
June 30, 2007.

Investment Maturities

Fair <1 1-2 2-3
Value Year years years
Cash:
On hand $ 972,808 - - -
In bank 56,101 - - -
Total cash 1,028,909 - - -
Pooled investments:
Investment in Los Angeles County’s
Pooled Surplus Investment (PSI) Fund $ 277,865,681 277,865,621 $ - $
Investment in Local Agency
Investment Fund 40,005,508 40,005,508
Total cash equivalents 317,871,129 317,871,129
Investments:
U.S. Government Securities 20,000,000 20,000,000 - -
Total Investments 20,000,000 20,000,000 -
Sub-total pooled investments/
investments $ 337,871,129 $ 337,871,129 $ - %
Total cash, cash equivalents & investments 388,900,038 $ 337,871,129 $ - $
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Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is associated with price vatgtintroduced by extending the maturity of

instruments purchased. Generally, the longer taeumty of an investment, the greater the
sensitivity of its fair value to changes in mark&terest rates. As a means of limiting its
exposure to fair value losses arising from risinigrest rates, the AQMD investment policy
limits its investment portfolio of Pooled Surplusvéstments (PSI) with the County of Los

Angeles to maturities of less than five yearsmaetof purchase. The maximum maturity of
any SPI (Special Purpose Investments) shall beyinags. The weighted average maturity of
the SPI separate account portfolio may not excessb tyears.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of default or the inabilit§ a debt issuer to fulfill its obligation when
due. The AQMD mitigates its credit risk generddlyfollowing its three primary investment
objectives, in order of safety, liquidity, and ylel The AQMD’s policy further restricts the
investing in only permitted investments; the pditfaos diversified so that no one type of
issuer or issue will have a disproportionate imacthe portfolio.

Custodial Credit Risk

For an investment, custodial credit risk is thekrithat, in the event of failure of the
counterparty to a transaction, a government orgamey will not be able to recover the value
of its investment or collateral securities thatiarthe possession of an outside party.

As of June 30, 2007, none of the AQMD’s depositgieestments were exposed to custodial
credit risk.

State Treasurer’s Local Agency Investment Fund

The AQMD is a voluntary participant in the CalifanState Treasurer's Local Agency
Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by Califiar Government Code Section 16429
under the oversight of the Treasurer of the Stateatifornia. At June 30, 2007, the AQMD

had $40,005,508 deposited in LAIF. The amountstee is unrated as to credit quality.

LAIF is part of the Pooled Money Investment Acco@idMIA) and has oversight provided
by the Pooled Money Investment Board (PMIB) andirahouse Investment Committee.
The PMIB Board members are the State Treasureeciir of Finance and the State
Controller. Additionally, LAIF has oversight bydhlLocal Investment Advisory Board,
which consists of five members, as designated byutst 